Elected Officials

Luciria L. Lovette, Mayor Pro Tem
Mitchell Boston

Patrick Underwood

Bridgette Kelly

Robert Dodd

I. Call to Order

CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE

The Honorable Mayor Sarah B. Hayes, Presiding

September 23, 2025 @ 6:00 PM
Walthourville Police Department

City Administration

Nicolas Maxwell, Fire Chief

Mrs. Ivy Norris, Finance Manager
Christopher Reed, Police Chief

Mr. Dave Martin, Public Works Administrator

Mr. Luke R. Moses, City Attorney
Ms. Shana T. Moss, City Clerk/HR Administrator

AGENDA

Mayor Sarah B. Hayes

IL. Roll Call City Clerk
III.  Invocation Appointee
IV.  Pledge of Allegiance In Unison
V. Adoption of Meeting Agenda Councilmembers
VI.  Adoption of Meeting Minutes Councilmembers

e September 9, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
e September 9, 2025 Executive Session Minutes
e September 16, 2025 Special Called Auditor RFP Meeting Minutes

VII. Presentation(s)
VIII. Agenda Item(s)
1. LCPC

Mr. Jeff Ricketson

2025 Liberty County Joint Comprehensive Plan Resolution.

2. LCPC

Mrs. Lori Parks

Business License Request for Tara and Dem Boyz, LL.C/Janitorial Service.

3. LCPC

Mrs. Lori Parks

One Time Event Permit for OctoberFest.

4, LCPC
One Time Event Permit

Mrs. Lori Parks
for Barbers in the Field.




IX.

XI.
XII.

XIII.
XIV.

5. LCPC

One Time Event for 912 Good Eats Festival.

6. LCPC
Boundary Hall Ph. 1B — Final plat for 67 single-family homes.

7. City of Walthourville

Awarding of City Auditor.

Department Comments

e  Water Department
e Fire Department

e Police Department

Citizens Comments

Mayor’s Update

Elected Officials’ Comments

Mayor Pro Tem Luciria L. Lovette
Councilmember Mitchell Boston
Councilmember Patrick Underwood
Councilmember Bridgette Kelly

Councilmember Robert Dodd

Executive Session

Adjournment

Mrs. Lori Parks

Mrs. Mardee Sanchez

Councilmember Bridgette Kelly

City of Walthourville
Mr. Patrick Golphin
Chief Nicolas Maxwell
Chief Christopher Reed
Walthourville Citizens
Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
City of Walthourville

Mayor Hayes and Attorney Moses

Mayor and Council

When an Executive Session is warranted, it is called for the following:

(Litigation, Personnel and Real Estate)




II.

[11.
I¥.

VL

VIL

City of Walthourville
Mayor and Council Meeting Minutes
September 10, 2025
Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM by Mayor Sarah B. Hayes.

Roll Call: The roll was called by Kara Jackson with the following members present:

Mayor Sarah B. Hayes Mayor Pro Tem Lu%’flj Lovette
Councilman Mitchell Boston Councilman Patrick Underwood
Councilwoman Bridgette Kelly Councilman Robert Dodd

The attendance of Council constituted a quorum.
City Attorney Luke R. Moses in attendance via mobile device.

Invocation: The invocation was given by Mayor Sarah B. Hayes.

Pledge of Allegiance was recited in unison.

Adoption of City Council Agenda: The motion to approve was made by Councilwoman Kelly and
the second was provided by Councilman Underwood. '

O
Vote: 5-0 Motion Passed.

Adoption of City Council Special Called Meeting Minutes from August 22, 2025. The motion to
approve was made by Councilman Dodd and the second was provided by Councilman Underwood.
Vote 4-1 Motion Carried. Lovette Opposed.

Adoption of City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from August 26, 2025. The motion to approve
was made by Councilman Dodd and the second was provided by Councilman Underwood.
Vote 4-1 Motion Carried.

Lovette Opposed.

Adoption of City Council Special Called Meeting Executive Minutes from August 26, 2025. The
motion to approve was made by Councilman Boston and the second was provided by Councilman

Dodd.
Vote 3-2 Motion Carried.

Kelly and Lovette Opposed.

Agenda Items:

L. TICPC Ms. Lori Parks

Special One Time Event Permit for 912 Day

Rodney Kelly was asking for a Special Event Permit for 912 Day for September 12" — 14th. The
area is zoned C-2. Mr. Kelly was not in attendance. Anticipated participants was marked as 250.
Tents and sound amplification was checked to be used from September 12 — 14", Food and alcohol
were both blank on application for served and sales. Mayor Hayes asked if there would be food or
alcohol sold or served. Ms. Parks stated Mr. Kelly said no and that he wasn’t clear about it. Mayor
Pro Tem asked if LCPC made sure permits were granted by DPH (Dept of Public Health). Ms. Parks
stated no and that DPH would verify the food trucks. Councilman Dodd asked if DPH would give
the permit to the food trucks and not Mr. Kelly and Ms. Parks stated that is correct and that the
vendors should have a business license for the food truck and the DPH approval. Councilman Boston



asked on what grounds LCPC approve the food and Ms. Parks stated she brings the permits before
council and follows the protocol. Councilwoman Kelly stated these have changed from one time to
monthly events. Councilman Boston stated he thought they were going to have the owner of the
property come and obtain a business license. Mayor Pro Tem stated we need more clarity on the
event. Councilman Dodd asked if the event was that weekend and Mayor Pro Tem asked if we could
contact Mr. Kelly. Ms. Parks stated she reached out but could not make contact. Councilwoman
Kelly stated she could make a motion to approve but do it differently with guidelines going forward
with the property owner. Mr. Jeff Richetson verified that Mr. Kelly did not ask for alcohol and this
event would not include alcohol sales but if a vendor had a license they could serve food.

The motion to approve was made by Councilwoman Kelly untll”[/hey revamp the policy on one time

///’

events and the second was provided by Councilman Underwood.”
Vote 4-1 Motion Carried.

Lovette Opposed.

& LOPC Ms. Lori Parks

Special One Time Event Permit for Gospel Fest

Rodney Kelly was asking for a Special Event Permit for Gospel Fest for October 10" — 12™. The
area is zoned C-2. Mr. Kelly was not in attendance. Anticipated participants were marked as 250.
Tents and sound amplification was checked to be used from September 12 — 14”/’/;Food and alcohol
were both blank on application for served and sales. Petition was tabled until more discussion.

3. City of Walthourville Attorney Luke R. Moses

City Policy Updates

Attorney Luke R. Moses stated that it is still in progress as he still has questions and was waiting on
councilmembers to move forward.

4. City of Walthourville Mayor Sarah B. Hayes and Councilwoman Brigette Kelly
Special Event Permit Update

Mayor Hayes asked LCPC Jeff Ricketson to the podium and stated that her and Councilwoman
Kelly had concerns regarding the permits. Mayor stated a policy needs to be created as many are
getting away from one time permit to monthly events and that Council needs to address that. Mayor
stated they are concerned about security and what the property owner is responsible and liable for.
She does not want the City to be involved in any lawsuits. Mr. Ricketson stated they have basically
created a fairground and reached out to the property owner and that they need to come in and get a
conditional use permit for an outdoor event center. A policy of 11 conditions has been created by
LCPC to be approved by the Council that the owner would have to follow. Changes are bold and in
parentheses given by council.

1. The property owner shall obtain a business license from the City of Walthourville and Town
of Allenhurst. Violations of any of the special conditions herein shall render the business
licenses void. (No changes needed)

2. Food trucks or other individual vendors at the events shall have a valid business license.

(must have permission from DPH first)

Security shall be provided by a private security firm properly licensed by the GA Board of
Private Detective and Security Agencies for events at which more than 100 people are in
attendance. Local law enforcement may be hired to provide security at the expense of the
event organizer. (Mayor asked how do you know if more than 100 and Ricketson stated
it’s a judgment call. Mayor gave a scenario and then asked to remove the more than

100 people)

(OS]



VIIL.

4. Events shall only be permitted between 10 am and 10 pm. Event setup and takedown may be
allowed one hour before and after these times. (Councilman Boston stated 10 is good
during the week and midnight on a weekend and Councilwoman Kelly agreed.)

Events to which over 500 people are in attendance shall have licensed traffic control

Js
personnel directing traffic on E. Oglethorpe Highway. Local law enforcement may be hired
to provide traffic control at the expense of the event organizer. (Mayor Hayes - Traffic
control will be needed no matter how many)

6. No alcohol shall be allowed on the premises, whether for sale or not. (no change)

7. Amplified music shall not be allowed. (This line will be removed from rules)

8. No activity or displays shall be allowed in front of the concrete wall. This does not extend to
temporary signage on the wall which shall not requiré” a pé//mut but which shall not be
installed any earlier than 2 weeks before the advertised event and shall be removed within 2
days of the end of the event. (This will be for events

9. At least a week prior to a scheduled event, the City of Walthourville and the Town of
Allenhurst shall be notified of the pending event. Such notification shall be on a form
provided by either municipality and may require signatures from local officials including by
not limited to the Allenhurst Mayor, and the Walthourville Mayor, City Clerk, Police Chief
and Fire Chief. (Councilwoman Kelly suggested 21 days) 7

10. The City of Walthourville and the Town of Allenhurst reserve the right, "o/p“ ‘an event-by-event
basis, to require proof of any of the above requirements or impose additional requirements
for the event. The municipalities also reserve the right to deny subsequent events by an event
organizer if there were violations at any of their previous events.

11. Prior to the first event, documentation shall be provided indicating either GDOT does not
require any improvements to the existing access of property or, if they do, the property is in
compliance with the requirements. Local review may be required. (GDOT will need to sign
off as a fairground)

Department Reports City of Walthourville

Water Department Mr. Patrick Golphin
Mr. Golphin stated there were 100 non-payment disconnects and about 50 have been reconnected. He
also stated he would be sending an email to council regarding garbage information. Councilman Dodd
asked if the final 50 haven’t paid by Friday if we would send information to Atlantic Waste to not pick
up the locations and Mr. Golphin stated yes. Councilman Boston asked who information on water
pressure at the wells would have as he got a call from Dryden Enterprises. Mr. Golphin stated that
they are looking into the pressure because there was pressure in the beginning and there is still
pressure in the front, and they are not sure what happened but they are working on it. Mayor Pro
Tem Lovette stated she had been getting calls about people getting water without a meter and if there
has been an audit to account for all meters. Mr. Golphin stated yes and that most are now digital and
if it detects water usage on an unused meter the water team is dispatched to check the location. He
stated a trailer park 1s different as it is private property and we can not go on private property and
that everyone has a meter.

Fire Department Chief Nicolas Maxwell
Chief Maxwell stated since the last meeting they have responded to 33 calls of which 23 were medical
calls, 3 motor vehicle accidents, 4 fire and 3 miscellaneous fire calls. 2 of the 4 fires were mutual aid
calls. He stated there has been an increase in vehicle lock-ins and to remember to check vehicles before
exiting as it can become increasingly hotter inside of a locked vehicle although temperatures have
been cooler recently. Chief also stated that some in the previous discussions regarding permits some

3



IX.

XI.

XIIL.

have applicable fire codes for outside assemblies such as tents, food trucks, generators and more. Chief
stated that in Liberty County there are building and coding experts and fire guys. In some instances,
we rely on the County and that we do not charge to keep the City safe.

Police Department Officer Vincent Smith
No formal report. Officer Smith stated there is an uptick in vehicle break-ins where weapons are stolen.
Officer Smith stated some could just check a door and if left open, they can take weapons and more.
Mayor stated she saw a video and it looks as if some are more organized. 38:40

Citizen Comments Walthourville Citizens
None

Council Comments Elected Ofticials

Mayor Hayes

Passed a flyer to councilmembers and stated there is a We Care Initiative that she is involved in and
that donations have been collected and will be given out the next day between 10am and 1pm for
senior citizens and hopes for it to be an ongoing monthly event. Mayor Pro Tem asked what is the
criteria needed and Mayor stated “be a senior citizen”. Councilwoman Kelly ask//g/d if an id is needed
and Mayor stated only if they do not look like a senior citizen. She hopes to do more in the future.
Mayor also stated she is waiting for the tax digest to move forward and there will be meetings

regarding SPLOST and FLOST.

Mayor Pro Tem Luciria L. Lovette

States the City is being asked to be involved in the 250 year celebration as well as put flags on display.
The next meeting is Sept 11 on the 3™ floor of City Hall in Hinesville according to Councilman

Underwood. Mayor Pro Tem also stated there will be a scarecrow stroll and that there will be a section
for children with special needs. Nothing is required from the City for this event.

Councilman Mitchell Boston No Comments
Councilman Patrick Underwood No Comments
Councilwoman Bridgette Kelly

Mayor Hayes thanked Councilwoman Kelly for her work on the plans for the old BoMaz area.

Councilwoman Kelly requested to go into Executive Session for personnel property and real estate.

Councilman Robert Dodd No Comments

Councilwoman Kelly requested to go into Executive Session for personnel property and real estate at
710pm.

Adjournment: Motion was given by Councilwoman Kelly and seconded by Councilman Underwood.
Adjournment was at 7:22pm

Minutes Submitted by Kara Jackson



City of Walthourville
Mayor and Council Special Called Auditor RFP Bid Opening Meeting
September 16, 2025 @ 6:00 PM
Walthourville Police Department

[. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM by Mayor Sarah B. Hayes.

I1. Roll Call: The Roll was taken by the City Clerk. In addition to Mayor Hayes, the following
members were present:
p

Mayor Pro Tem Luciria L. Lovette Counc /2 /%ber Mitchell Boston
Councilmember Patrick Underwood mber Bridgette Kelly
Councilmember Robert D,//}/////////
L /

Elected Officials physically present were Dodd eﬁ and Underv\%f od.

// ///////////

/%,
The attendance of the l// // 4/%//9 Y

///// ///////////// orum. ////////

Elected Officials telephonic were Boston and K

[1I. Auditor RFP #2025-02X Bid Ope

/ //// /
Mayor Hayes had the Rf/ /f/; I’/apket and dls;nbuted// 0/ the Ele e ;ody the RFP’s that the city

28™ and the bid ran through

received. The Bid w /:)l ed/(a r.advertis
//// he cnty s website, in the Coastal

Zz 7 A ent on r 50 ¥
Friday September 12 025 //////’7 _T = ///1 //%t

Wwas pac
// //
Courier, the Georum Pm;/urement Slte ////2////

//

//////é’f/fk //// // é
oposa Sf ///0 s Moo 90 out of Gainesville, Florida and Kendall

) /////////J . nC brmitted eiiiepyi

_,,/,////}/ st W/{/ am ,W// and’Company submitted a proposal earlier this

year i /Me{/}f when the REP:was pos//ted The aud?ts/are for January 1-December 31, for years 2021,
7 L ////

The c1ty recelve
7

i W
2022, 202/3/and 2024 //

December 31, 2021/// O $ //%
December 3 1, 2022
December 31, 2023
December 31, 2024
They can get the audits done by December of 2025.

The Pricing for Kendall Davis is as follows:

$20, 000.00 Annually.

Councilmember Dodd stated he is concerned about the cost of the audits. He said,” we are talking
about possibly $100K or more and how are we going to pay for this.” He added we are struggling



to pay bills now. Councilmember Underwood stated that, “we just need to get it done.”
Councilmember Kelly added that she is concerned about cost. James Moore would be good, but
how would we be able to afford it. Mayor Hayes added perhaps the city can obtain a pay structure
with the firm by asking them for the 2024 audit to be paid in 2025.

Several questions were posed about the RFPs. The Elected Body asked that clarity be obtained
from Kendall Davis about time frame of completion. Councilmember Kelly volunteered to contact
Mr. Roger Nixon with CKH to ask if the cost of James Moore could be reduced. A decision will

S
¥V
o
™
O @
o y
|

@

\
&

g

g
-
" 4

@
),

4
&

/////’//
= O &\

N



RESOLUTION #2025-092301

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE
2025 LIBERTY COUNTY JOINT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
FOR LIBERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA

WHEREAS, the Georgia Planning Act of 1989 requires local governments to develop and maintain a
comprehensive plan to retain their Qualified Local Government status and eligibility for State permits,

grants, and loans; and

WHEREAS, the comprehensive plan is intended to serve as a policy guide for future physical
growth and land development in all of Liberty County and its municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission has been designated by the local
governments in Liberty County as the organization responsible for conducting comprehensive
planning activities in Liberty County, the Town of Allenhurst, and the Cities of Flemington, Gum
Branch, Hinesville, Midway, Riceboro, and Walthourville; and

WHEREAS, the 2025 Liberty County Joint Comprehensive Plan for Liberty County was
developed through a comprehensive and cooperative planning process in coordination with state
and local officials; and

WHEREAS, Liberty County has been notified by appropriate cognizant authority that the most
recent efforts updating the local comprehensive plan did adequately address the minimum
standards and procedures promulgated by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs to
facilitate compliance with said act; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Walthourville
hereby officially adopts the 2025 Liberty County Joint Comprehensive Plan this 23" day of
September 2025.

Sarah B. Hayes, Mayor Luciria L. Lovette, Mayor Pro Tem

Mitchell Boston, Councilmember Patrick Underwood, Councilmember

Bridgette Kelly, Councilmember Robert Dodd, Councilmember
ATTEST:

Shana T. Moss, City Clerk



Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: Tara and Dem Boyz, LLC / Janitorial Service
Business Owner: Tara Ferrer-Carrington
Property Owner: Homes of Integrity Construction Co. Inc.
Address: 105 Belleau Woods Circle

The Hamlet Townhomes, Parcel 040D111
Zoned: PUD (Planned Unit Development)
Comments: Will be using a room in the home for an office

Only. No clients, employees, sales, deliveries or
storage of inventory is allowed on the

premises.
Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: %ﬂo )ﬂfwéo/ 9.16-45
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




| .:_m.?f\ma.\{.,\w.m,ka_ e
- L - e

Tho map shownis for lllustration plirposesionly. K1 2 7 Qh@—UQ@Q
Tho:area na__.._gu Is opproximifte, and 1= n curate to surveylng or engineering standards

L berty Cou esponeibliity. (dr the fagel accuracy contained herein,

Liberty County PRISYM 2.0 The : aml 0+.
Liberty County

Areas Carto Line 1 Assessars' Offlce 1inch = 94 feet
. - b 2] 100 Main Street, Suite 1550
.l Override 1 Land Hook ess e 3“ v C 3t Hinesville, Georgia 31313
Roads . o 5 Phone: (912) 87 6-3568 / M
| Parcels 4777

N Printed on 9/16/2025
http #/www.libertycountyga .com

Libany Goany BFF, Sovrow: Esrl, Masas, Eantis,




i&%\ ey Ecm:q\ County \uBbm:._\ mmoo& Card AEE Cloes!

PiNgoaoD11 g _|[pate:oot02025 " [Pagee3

o |




City of Walthourville Business License Division

Application for corporation or Limited Liability Company LLC
Occupation Tax Certificate

atnatanied WTaeE PN EsG

*The application must be filled out completely to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation Tax Certificate. Payment must be filed
with the application to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation tax Certificate. This application will not be processed if it is not
accompanied by the appropriate tax fee. You will not be billed. Please print with ink or type. In order for the appropriate tax or fee

to be determined the application accompanied by all appropriate documents must be submitted in person.

Pursuant to The Georgia Immigration Reform Act that was passed by the State Legislature and signed by the Governor all persons
applying for renewing a City of Walthourville Tax Certificate must provide a secure and verifiable document as required by 0.C.G.A
50-36-1(e) (1) and sign and notarize the affidavit required by 0.C.G.A 50-36-1 (e) (2) and the affidavit required by 0.C.G.A 36-60-6

{d).

This Business is: W) New Application
( ) Ownership Change / Date ownership changed & Certificate #
( )!amfilling a name/or address change for Certificate#

L i |

Name business as

Business Phone#f{2) 25 7 232(
Name of Corporation/LLC* /52_:—-&_4 amd, DCW& & yz,

Business Address IOS’ i 10D S 1 A g ;1 AL (¢n - 3)31

Mailing Address A4 ' A2 : oLeh. W Jn T S M ML’@"SISQ
Home Address_/ 7 /S at) [Lpe ;Mﬁ' City_ 1 QJ;“_( State M__Zip_gm

Email Address,. : - l‘J'\ < COM

98-420L 0

AUz -

Number of employees (including ownership) in City of Walthourville 4‘\)

E-verify# (Required if 11 or more employees)

State Sales Tax ID# Federal ID # ?3 - /?7—{3?8’
Owner Name — (i ag; Ssk . . DOB 05} 18)/153’7"7

-
DOES THIS BUSINESS REQUIRE A STATE LICENSE? (YES) ')O (NO)
(Please attach a copy of your state license or certification)

*+* All electrical, mechanical, plumbing, well drilling contractors, salon, mobile home dealers, mobile home installers, and any other contractor that is required to

have a State of Georgia License will be required to attach a copy of the license to this application before insurance.
***All commercially used building may be subject to an inspection for fire and safety code compliance prior to any certificate of occupancy or business license being

issued.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
ZONING DEPT () APPROVED ( ) DISAPPROVED BY DATE
FIRE DEPT () APPROVED ( ) DISAPPROVED BY DATE,
CITY COUNCIL { ) APPROVED () DISAPPROVED BY DATE,

BUSINESS LICENSE DEPT DATE RECEIVED
BUSINESS LICENSE ISSUANCE DATE
Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: {912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




City of Walthourville Business License Division

s VILE 1

Are you, the applicant, the corporation, LLC or any shareholder currently delinquent in payment of any taxes or fees to
any state or local government? [V If yes, please indicate the type of tax or fee, and the amount due with the reason

the tax is delinquent.

o )
/E{ ) If this property is zoned residential, no clients, employees, sales, deliveries, storage of inventory, or equipment
(initals) are allowed on the premises. Only one commercial vehicle not to exceed 12,500 [bs Gross weight used as
transportation by the occupant may be parked at the residence.

/
/&; | swear or affirm that | have obtained or will obtain within thirty days of the date of this application a City of

(initals) Walthourville Certificate of Occupancy as required by the city ordinances.

.——-—-'-
/ Fl : I will comply with the Zoning Restrictions stated above.
(initals)

ffirm that the facts stated by me are true, | understand any misrepresentation
or fraudulent statement is groundsg jor automatic dismissal of this application and/revocation of the license. |
understand that all signs displayed on my premise must be permitted by the City of Walthourville, | further understand
that my business must operate in compliance with all applicable state, federal and local laws, ordinances and
regulations, and that the granting of this occupation tax certificate or payment of this occupation tax does not waive the
right of any federal, state or local entity to regulate and enforce laws, ordinances and regulations. 1 understand that all
decisions of the Business License Division may be appealed to the City of Walthourville.

This. /O day of &’FICMIDU 2025
Legibly print name lara E;f‘ek' CCU("; rﬁ”?’ﬁ

—

Signature of applicant -

This application must be approved by the Liberty County Planning Commission

Tax Map & Parcel# DL\DD \\\ Zoning Classification ?MD

Approved by: Date Approved:

Date the request will be presented to Mayor and Council: Oql/g-j/ 1015

***APPLICANT MUST COMPLETE THE AFFIDAVITS AND PROVIDE A SECURE AND VERIFIABLE DOCUMENT***

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




CITY OF WALTHOURYVILLE BUSINESS LICENSE DIVISION — LAWFUL PRESENCE AFFIDAVIT
0.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(2) AFFIDAVIT

By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a loan, grant, tax credit and/or other public benefit, as referenced
in 0.C.G.A. § 50-36-1, administered by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, the undersigned applicant verifies
one of the following with respect to my application for a public benefit:

1) TR I am a United States Citizen.
2) I am a legal permanent resident of the United States.
3) ] am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act with an alien

number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency.

My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency
is:

The undersigned applicant also hereby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older and has provided at least one secure
and verifiable document, as required by 0.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(1), with this affidavit.

The secure and verifiable document provided with this affidavit can best be classified as:

In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who knowingly and willfully makes a false
fictitious, or frandulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be guilty of a violation of 0.C.G.A. 16-10-20, and
face criminal penalties as allowed by such criminal statute.

Executed this the day of ,20 in (city), (state).
*Signature of Applicant
Printed Name of Applicant
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE
DAY OF ,20

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:

*This Affidavit must be signed by the same person who executes the Application Certification Form Letter

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Bushee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE BUSINESS LICENSE DIVISION — PRIVATE EMPLOYER AFFIDAVIT

By executing this affidavit under oath, the undersigned private employer verifies one of the following with respect
to its application for a business license, occupational tax certificate, or other document required to operate a business as

referenced in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d):

Section 1. Please check only one:
(A) On January 1* of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or
corporation employed more than ten (10) employees'.

*** If you select Section 1(A), please fill out Section 2 and then execute below,

(B) / On January 1% of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or
corporation employed ten (10) or fewer employees.

*** If you select Section 1(B), please skip Section 2 and execute below.
Section 2.
The employer has registered with and utilizes the federal work authorization program in accordance with the
applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6. The undersigned private employer also
attests that its federal work authorization user identification number and date of authorization are as follows:

Name of Private Employer

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number

Date of

Authorization

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on Sl
20 in (city), (state).

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME
ON THIS THE DAY OF .20

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

! To determine the number of employees for purposes of this affidavit, a business must count its total number of employees company-
wide, regardless of the city, state, or country in which they are based, working at least 35 hours a week.

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: (912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.cityofwalthourville.com




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: One Time Event for a October Fest
(October 24% — October 26%)

Business Owner: Rodney Kelly

Property Owner: Con Sabor Boricula LLC

Address: 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Parcel 050B045

Zoned: C2 (General Commercial)

Comments: Needs Mayor and Council Approval for this

One Time Event Permit.

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: %ﬂc /M/ 7-/4-45
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




& ALtHog, City of Walthourville Business License Division

f “Z
&Y SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
- ‘ This application must be completed and submitted 21 Days Prior to the Outdoor Event
d r;’ .5. Please do not begin advertising your event until your application is approved.
e o7 4

O e
'i(-‘ﬂ'u,_hb-" ’

CEDAYS Wb oy 1 PTTR ,

Applicant information

Name: M“‘f.c/’ /@'//‘/‘ - Uq%'qoq‘af93
cvent Name: TIEZEL | october o5t q(7- "192-957 0

Business: Business Address ;
Mailing Address _// 7 .5C‘e/}£ A/ City lipesis 1S state G /% Zip_ 31345
Home Address City State Zip

Email Address . é’_g[é‘é 7L o 1ol Con)

Address of Outdoor Event: 359 jues ¢ O/?E/‘;%r,;,x [ ;{ f/, s illE  Ga  Z/3/3

Date/Time of Outdoor Event:’l\ 0767([
Beginning Date: (‘gcf{ &‘z End Date: oczé ﬁg E

i
Event Time: /¢ AM ¥ PM until Y AM /@
Set-Up Time: rae / PM

‘ .
Break-Down Time: EF < od AM /(PM

Event Type:[_] Private *no more than three (3) days duration in which alcohol is served/sold by a Licensed Alcoholic Beverage Caterer or bona
fide nonprofit organization*
ublic *no more than three (3) days duration™

259

Anticipated Number of Participants:

Alcohol will be: [_] Sold [MServed Faod Will Be: {jSold [Jserved Onsite Cooking Iﬂ Yes[ |No

Has a Food Service permit been granted? [M¥es [ INo [[]By The Department of Public Health [ ] N/A

Will Tents be used?[\f Yes [ ]No, Howmany? ______ Wili sound amplification equipment be ysed? [AYes[ ] No
Will artificial lighting be used? Eﬁ(es CINo Will a sign or other type of display be used? EKSS [ Ino

Detailed Description of Outdoor Event: (Include information about activities, structures, vendars, merchandise, etc.)

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF APPUCAM oare 4__/ |5/ R3S

| acknowledge and affirm that this Outdoor Event will occur in accordance with the terms and conﬁs stipulated therein of the permit.

PRINTED NAME AND siGNATURE OF pROPERTY ownier [RAUC Ryos h) ﬂwﬂ ,Két pote_ 4 s | S/ 2028

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: {912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.citvofwalthourville.com




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: Barbers in the Field (Barber-Q)

October 8th — October 11, 2025
Business Owner: Khari Collins ,
Property Owner: Con Sabor Boricula LLC — Raul Rios, Jr.
Address: 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Parcel 050B045
Zoned: C2 (General Commercial)
Comments: Needs Mayor and Council Approval for this

One Time Event Permit.

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: gﬁ”m ﬂﬂ\%@ 9-16-35
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




City of Walthourville Business License Division

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
This application must be completed and submitted 21 Days Prior to the Outdoor Event
Please do not begin advertising your event until your application is approved.

ALROE MOVIAG Will]E IMPROVING

Applicant information

'(b"-’f Name: b&/‘bﬂ‘ﬁ (N F/\u F(’, /(%5(‘/‘5.6* Q\Phone Number: 9/2 (‘/32 "A'SSZ_C\

; C' Event Name: /alr}f f’ éo/ {J AN ,

-C Business: L/ﬂ_f‘lu_‘% CH-L Business Address (7/ % /:@— (/h//?ﬁ. )‘/)bg) /
MaillngAddress ‘?’[?) F—G Ml!% DZM?U City }'lllr\ il]r/( State @.—0‘ /Zip 3{32 )
Home Address 6% K{, “i-l@}’\ L‘m ' City VVZ (L,OCJ\-(/ State @/1 Zip :%!%)(')
Email Address /(mamr—ac{ '( 2y u/,; Aoy . Conn {

Address of Outdoor Event: Ll‘\bﬁﬁ) \N DQUL ‘H/\COV/-;«C, J("(INU

Date/Time of Outdoor Event: J {

Beginning Date: /8/ 7! /225 gnd Date: 1O/ ‘3/2035 /0-8. A5 +o 10 H-A5

Event Time: _IZ100 AM /@) until __ {7 2050 @ PM

set-Up Time: _{ hipo) @&/ PM

Break-Down Time: IZ DO @/ PM

Event Type: D Private *no more than three (3) days duration in which alcohol is served/sold by a Licensed Alcohalic Beverage Caterer or bona
fide nonprofit organization*

@\Pu blic *no more than three (3) days duration*

Anticipated Number of Participants: ////

Alcohol will be: [] Sold HServed Food W:II Be msmd [Jserved  Onsite Cooking [xq Yes[|No

Has a Food Service permit been granted? [X] Yes [ ]No N By The Department of Public Health [ ] N/A

Will Tents be used?Kl Yes[ |No How many? A7 Will sound amplification equipment be used? &j Yes[ ] No
Will artificial lighting be used?m Yes ﬁ Ne Will a sign or other type of display be used? ﬁYes [INe

Detailed Description of Qutdopr Event: {Include information about activities, structures, vendors, merchandlse, etc.) /
// (S inis 120

it edorl inc. AenL 74 /mf*))cf“’\ / 10 [
ﬁ‘iw’// “S a//jgﬁ,r\ <07V 08 Hof/ﬂfLanc/ (Jm)ﬂ fe Z,,/ Oi Om/{JfS

3/)(?;/! /’7:, '3 6(7(_14 A= ﬁnu / j/./r/ Qf\
PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT: /&/V‘! ///1‘\ %’7 {./f,/! DATE: O% / /% / ZO'Z”H

{ acknowledge and affirm that this Outdoor Event will occur in accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated therein of the permit.

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER RA”L’ Rl 4 M Date: 09 A Gg / M’Y

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: {912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Busbee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address: www.citvofwalthourville.com




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: September 23, 2025

Business License: Midnight Oasis of Brunswick

Business Owner: Shanesia Jaudon

Property Owner: Con Sabor Boricula LLC — Raul Rios, r.
Address: 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Parcel 050B045
Zoned: C2 (General Commercial)

Comments: Needs Mayor and Council Approval for this

One Time Event Permit.

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: %D?,o p/u,%_@/ 4.18.35
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




> r\\\LTFr City of Walthourville Business License Division
c';»‘" Bl SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
‘1* & . } » , This application must be completed and submitted 21 Days Prior to the Outdoor Event
b 2 ;3 ; Please do not begin advertising your event until your application is approved.

Applicant information
Name: Shanesia Jaudon

Business: Midnight Oasis Of Brunswick
Business Address 3365 Cypress Mill Rd. Brunswick, Georgia 31520
Mailing Address_ 128 Governors Blvd. Hinesville, Georgia 31313

Home Address_128 Governors Bivd. city Hinesville state_Georgia_zip 31313

Email Address__info@midnightoasisbwk.com
Address of Outdoor Event:  Bomaz Field 4850 W. Oglethorpe Hwy. Hinesville, Georgia 31313

Date/Time of Outdoor Eve/uéng_. |o XN /ZDZ{
Beginning Date: TG'J‘G#‘E@?S" End Date: 18/04/2025

EventTime: _ 11:00  apm/pMm until __08:00 am/pm
Set-Up Time: 09:00-10:00 Am/PM
08:00 - 09:00  apg/pM

Break-Down Time:

Event Type:[_] Private *no more than three (3) days duration in which alcahol is served/sold by a Licensed Alcoholic Beverage Caterer or bona
fide nonprofit organization*

Public *no more thon three (3) days duration*

Anticipated Number of Participants: _150

Alcohol will be: [] Sold[ | Served Food Will Be: [x]Sold[]Served  Onsite Cooking [] Yes[x]No

Has a Food Service permit been granted? [_] Yes [x] No [C] By The Department of Public Health [x] N/A

Will Tents be used? [X] Yes[ ]No Howmany? _20 Will sound amplification equipment be used? [X] Yes [ ] No
Will artificial lighting be used? [ ] Yes [X] No Will a sign or other type of display be used? [_]Yes [X]No

Detailed Description of Outdoor Event: {Include information about activities, structures, vendors, merchandise, etc.) 912 Good Eats Festival
Midnight Oasis Of Brunswick Is a dedicated nonprofit organization that actively gives back to our local communities.

Our mission for this festival is to is support our local small businesses & community by creating networking opportunities.

We will have family friendly festival, food trucks & local eats, arts/crafts vendors, kids zone bounce house/face painting &

live entertainment , with a diverse line ug of vendors offering products, services and resources.
PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF AppLICANT:Shanesia Jaudon pare. 09, 08 , 2025

I acknowledge and affirm that this Outdoor Event will occur in accordance w:th the terms a;ﬁﬁ;zd;trons stipulated therein of the permit.

Dote:; q Pl | é’ /. 9015'{

PRINTED NAME AND SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER p\N’l L’ RLGE

Mailing Address: P.O Box K, Walthourville, GA 31333 Phone: {912) 368-7501
Office Location: 222 Bushee Road, Walthourville, GA 31333 Web site address; www.cityofwalthourville.com



UOISSIULWO) FUIUUR] PAILPIOSUO) ALIDGIT]

peoy uewpiep] :UOFEIOT|

dfld Pauoyz .

s3uremp Aqrwey-o[3ulg .
DL 9091 UO S101 £9
:uondInsa(]

QY ¥3LyVD

3ureaurduyg Suoq 'L
:TOJUI3UY

o (UspA1Q)
D11 0D Surp[oH

pue sanrado g A31aqry
:TodOJoAd(]

1C[d [eulq
d1 95eUd [[gH ATepunog




S

g

2 %%i

X

8E J Lk . )
ﬁmwﬁm,_m..u_n_nwa y

dej Ayumdrp




199) G| PIBA B2y WnWiuIp
183) G| 19811G PIeA SPIS wnwiulp
1994 G/ (dousiup) pre) spig wnwiuipy
1239} G| PIEA JUOI4 winwiulp
199} G} Sur Buipling 3e yipipA 107 wnwiuipy
198} a1enbs goo'y Bdly 107 9|qesn wnwliulp|

198} alenbs gog'y BOIY 107 SSO.ID) WnWIUI

(5307 11) 307 uspaes

198) G| PleA Jeay WNWIUIp
199) G| 198115 PIEA 8pIS WNWIUIA
199} G/ (JoLBju|) paBA SpIS WnWIUIA
1°9} G| PIEA JUOIH WNWIIUIA
1°8) 09 Sul Bulp|ing 3 YIPIAA 107 WinWIUIA
198} aJtenbs gog'y Baly 107 S|geSn WNWIUI
188} aienbs 0pp'‘g Baly 107 SSOUD) WNWIUI]

(5307 96) 307 prepuesg
&




! L LoT a4 | VN
LoT B2 | LOT 83

LOT 81 e B et B TR
LoT 80 —_— —— ] -
T 78 | LOT 79 b—— L — i -—HARDMAN ROAD
B skt i Bl ==
__._______-;.-_-_-— s i = C_\'__'j_.__, 53
T N/F CHAMPION
| GYMNASTICS UNUMITED, LLC
3 PARCEL # 040D-084
— \
I7 =
\ = .

OF COUNTY UNE

=

N/F T.S. WHITE & A.C. WHITE
PARCEL § 040D-083 |

|
\

LONG COUNTY

N/F WALTHOURMILE
PROPERTIES, LLC
PARCEL g 041B-002

{
i
Y

TRACT : 1
2815367 SQ FT
E4.63 ACRES

N/F 690 MOTORSPOR
PARCEL § 0418-0

LMITS OF FLOCD ZONE

ZONE X" [ ZONE A"

i

Standard Lots
Garden Lots
Community Lot
Pump station




' P 1 yLetes § T T - s P — T T
\ | menlmfmlm'raz"-m”‘ A T e
! i L 1 —— T dp————— — — =
T 78§ LOT 79 ! i e b = T HARCMAN ROAD
R X7 i _———
—_——— !
— Bk o A g C_q__/__..—;-;,-‘:li:::

‘\ ‘.

X N/F CHAMPICN
! GYMNASTICS UNLIMITED, LLC
' PARCEL ¢ 24CD—084

S et

|
L

\'

DF CCOUNTY LINE
1
!

i

| N/F TS wHITE & Ac. aMiTE
| PARCEL ¢ 0kD-C83 |
1
|

LONG COUNTY
= ALNNOD Alu3BN

i| i
\.

N/F WALTHOURVILLE
PROPERTIES, LLC
PARCEL § 041B-002

Pond 1

N/F €90 MOTORSPOR'

E4.53 ACRES
PARCEL ¢ D41B-

LIMITS OF FLOOD ZONE

ZONE "x" { ZONE AT

8
Z]
2]
8
8
B
]
&)
@ 23:23'\5? s'-airr
B
iz}
\E]
@
@
@
£
@

@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@

=FUMP
STATION

Standard Lat'sm

Garden Lots

Community Lot
\

NIS ANDREW AR R N
LavD, R. 0 YV -T-T.T1T.T
¢ 372008 NN, N




L ele|e® \o \1@
t‘—C""l ; 2\°\ ®@®\'\x@

@|e®

EXISTING
1o ¥+ WETLANDS ©

TRACT : |
2815367 SQ FT
54.53 ACRES

LTS OF FLOOGD ZONE

ZOME “x" { ZONE ‘A"

—_..--—:_"?Tf '_;—#n

N/F CHAMFIGN
| GYMNASTICS UNLMITED. LLC
PARCEL ¢ 0400-084

[ N/F TS WHITE 2 aC. WM
L PARCEL ¢ DacDiBES

PROPERTIES, LLC

= ROMAN ROAD T
HARD it

N/F WALTHOURMLLE
PARCEL # 041B-002

N/F 630 MCTORSPCR
PARCEL § 0418-0

Standard Lotg
Garden Lots

Pump station
Wetlands

o



X3ANI 133HS

X3pup1aays




:
v
Sl
Sl -
g =
2 2
-~ 7
z ¥
= [
i \Uom
e e
M
. HfEm
‘m..h_,..N
..H,‘!..\J.L\
A
> 5 | g
LS/ Auy- B
(iCnd
gETH A%
; €42
¢ gy
L
B
e
g &
5 &
el

T N
L - -
L -
i
V. a
\
'
; =
\ -
Ve -
€25 Sne # oy
A e e agan e e b a
X

Lt ol

# 2|

2
T
=0
al

2140 e e ol

Ty aes e e s
[

o ey
B L]

}o9yqg



LIRS

) SONITTOH CINY SALLATAOUd LA

IT SOOI SIOT N Yo F¥ SLOT
91 2SVHL NOISLAIQENS TIVH Luvasiod
TV TVNI

DINI'O

l

&vqunca

ey

- OA/5_09) AVA_TIVH A

e

[ (L4 e - I :f S v R
sl - - Y H " . - . =~
- T e e ~— .
‘....._u...l.l.l‘l m e e e e —
M o . . B B /1
S i .
it - “ . .
- me 4
o o wA Oy ot
~ - - 2 '
i s H P
- - -.‘ u-
2 M G, « om g g0 g )
Ao o R om0 ¥ R R T A e
- - - - - - . ' - - - - - - - - i

R e e e




1T
e

1601

ot SLOT

1 45V Hd "NOBLAIQENS TIvH DIvasiod

'

IVTd T¥N

"INT'0D SONICTTOH ANV SHLLYIOU ALY
1S0LSLOT #

st

s

Pt e

A

\
-

VEITET TumEns

L Bl e et Lo

P LR T

——— il aalbal N

v A

R s e

LR SR A R LR L S R

LT S

g

i

TS

ey

e

199YS




-1\,
SISV IVIE ARYVaNnoy
LY IVNG
ol
- ~ u wr 1
e |
_ C
- | | ]
p 1 i |
- | |
| =
=
o - o | @
> SO
- m.-us B . o
ﬂu o . %
s ; . 5| EH: S
(At | & '
M q t tn
oo
. b S
- IRTI
W -
Z
v | 5 |
: : g |
! |
I
s : » 7—
o T
3 1 1} fa
= z a1 !
i \ ] | i \
{ ) | ire
1 \ \ \
_,,, . o ] ’ "
- = \ \ | \
il > S b } \ )
A" ] )
] ., : ___. ,, ’ fn ey . 1 n
, N — \ W_ A
— \ \ ) o
: \
\
i \ \ ,, \ | o ' IR Rt LTS "y
¥ \ .,v \ Rl N | L1 i )
b | B 1 1
s T \ i
y o \ ., \ B L
‘ \ e
1 ”‘ A { :
\ \ L .
\ sl
. bt

[}

/y 09) S

cyd 0ISHE




. \
. .\

cz0g ‘¢t "dog UOISSIUIUOD) BUIUUR] [ pajepIjosuo’) Apaqry

SDUEUSJUTRW [RIaUa3/ATep 10J Sjuauwases afeurer(] .
(9@ 97°0) Spuepam
'VOH °Y3 03 suonedipa(g

o0ueuajurewa [euonounj I0J sjusuwioseo @WMSM.NHQ o

SPUIDUWIBAOId W I9]eMUWIIO)S PUR T9MIS ‘IOTBA\ o

199J $(08 — 39911G 10}29UU0))
199 ¢ — ssed [03slg
199F O€T — 31991)G STUUR(]
199J 7T — 3ANo0D) Adep
(UoISualIXa) 3997 7H/ — AeM [[eH ATepunog
:(‘TW €9°() Te103) S}99I1IS MIAN]
*AJ1D 93 03 suonedIpaQg




‘pojprerd
[PUl} U99q sey puod ayj jo A[pIigus o
[qun [T puod] 103 yuswases a3eureIp ayj
JO uonedIpap ayj jdedde jou [[m A3y ayf,

‘Pa[[e3sut st [1 puod] punore Sunusyg o}
[Fun aseyd sy ur asnoy Aue I0J ponssi

°q jou [reys Aduednodo jo sajednmIod)

V1 'Yd 10J SUOHIIPUO)) [eadg

‘papraoad
94 [[eYS $8 AMH O} peol Ssadde Puodds v

dNd 10j UoRIPU0) [eDadg
P & &




UOISSIWIWOD) Fultue] | pajepjosuo’) A31aqr]

‘d0UeULRjUTRW JO SIEJA OM] [[NJ
B S}98 AJID) 93 9INSUD [[IM SIY] ‘PIIdNIISUOD
ST 31 U0 ‘O Y3 12d ‘paxmbai oq [m DO
DUeUdJUTEW jeredas y D) dUBUUTEW

9} UI PIpNpPuUIl Jou SI JI  “TOAIMOL]

(D071
JIPa1d jo 1ap9] Arewrid ayj ur papnpur SI

UOTIDNIISUOD S ‘910219, “3oen} uonels dund
9U} PuoAaq Imq 394 J0U SI }931}G JI0JDUUOD)
‘uonipuod Temads NJ 9yl 03 30adsar yppm




UOISSIUILIOD) SUtuue| ] pajeprjosuos) A11aqiry

"W}
10} Papaau are suonipuod Teads reqrurs os
Padusy Asyy axe 1ou pue paperd Sureq si yeym
JO SHWIT 9y} UIYIIM J0U a1e gT "YJ UO UMOYS

(€ pue g spuod) spuod mau om; I} ISAIMOL]

‘porjsnes
Us9q aAeY suonipuod [ewads joq ‘o10ja1ay],
DeIS) ST U pue gy aUg v poyepd
ATINg mou st yT "y ur panerd Ajrenzed 1 puod
‘suonrpuod Teads jerd v ‘yq 03 3adsar yim




.

UOISSIWLUOD) SUTUUR] [ PAJRPIOSUO)) A110q1T

‘Teuoryesado st uoneys dund
9U} [jun paldnddo jou oIe SISNOY SINSUD

O] pajuelLIEM dIe SUOIIPUOD [erads [euonippy

‘0] Areurtad
9U} Ul popnpul St uons[dwiod S} “4931G

I03109UU0D) 0} IB[IWIS ‘UOIDNIISUOD IdPUNn |

ms

st uonels dwind ayj “1eaamory -uonels dwund
9U3} O} PIINOI ST g "YJ WOIJ 93emas ay} AJ3ser]




‘puey
-Ul Omﬁw SI m“_ﬁH@E@\wOHQEM @Sy JO mugmﬁmu—gﬁwa

I0J 00€‘I6I$ JO 3Junowe U} ur DO uv

009°STES - syuswaorduwr L1epuodag .

00S798$ - syuswnoxdwir ArewrrJ .

:spunowre
3urmoroy ayy ur DO 4q paojuerend aore
SjuswAoIdwn SuruTeWwDI U3 JO uorje[ejsul

UL ‘poeisur are (uoneys dund o jsed
19943G 10309uu0) uo jdodxe) PPn3d pue qind
pue (uoneis dumnd ayy 3deoxs) senIIN JYJ.




UOISSIWIWOD) SUtUuUe] ] pajeprjosuo)) A3aqi

SUONIPUOd [epads pue piepueis yim

SUOT}edIPaPp Jo ddueldasoe pue

LV 1d 'IVNIA 241 JO TVAOUIIV

d1 aseyd [[eH Arepunog

UOT}ePpUSUIWI0dJY] JJEIS




UOISSTWWOY) Sutuue| [ pajeprjosuo’) A31aqiy

‘AJLIOUINe [eJUSWUISA0S
durnordde ay3 pue ‘UoIssTwIwio)  3uruue]
oY} 10 DJDT 943 Jo 1030911 9y} Jo [eaoidde pue
uoneoynou 1oud jnoypm pamoye are jeaoxdde
JO SUOMIPUOD 33 W01y UOHeIAdP 10 dZueyd ON

"UONOE SIY] JO UOIIPUOD € PIIdPISU0D
oIe uoneordde siy3 ur perdwr 10 paureyuod
SjUoulalels pue ‘sferisjewl ‘Sjuauwndop ‘suerd v

"UOTIONIISUOD AU JO JUSWSOUIWIWIOD
03 Joud syrured pue S9SUDDI| [eI9PaJ pue 3je)s

Tedo[ paimbaix [re ureiqo jsnw jueordde YL

SUORHPUO) prepuelg DIDT]
& @




® % £
‘papraoiad s 31paid
JO I9}39] SdURULIUIEW B puk Pajardurod
A[LI010BJSIJES SI J991}G 10}09UU0))

pue

‘PaPI0D3I ST S[TAINOYI[EAM JO A1) U}

03 joe1} uonels dund sy Surirojsuern;

P93P 9y} pue ‘pajsaj AJI0joe)SIjes
‘9o1dwod st uonyeys dund a3 °g

| ‘pajeisur
mﬁm_ucmNmﬁzo&ﬁcsohmmﬁuﬁ.&mﬁ.<

T3un aseyd sy ur asnoy Aue 103
pansst aq jou [[eys Aduednodo jo sajednyniIey) I

SUOT}IPUO)) Jeadg




UOISSIIWO) dutuue] | pajeprjosuor) ASRETelly

‘Ayaamius 1oy ur payerd
[BULJ Usaq aaey A9y} [un ¢ pue g spuod
10} sjuswoses d3eurelp sy} JO UOEDIPAP
9} 1dadde JOU [IM 1 “I9AIMOL] 'T puod
10} yuswisses ageurerp ay; sjdeooe 31 ayf,

(P,#1107) SUOTITPUO)) Te1oadg
D @ @




We're of Service to
Those Serving Others.

PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE
AUDIT SERVICES TO
THE CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE




Proposai to Provide Audit Services to

The City of Walthourville

RFP #2025-01

Legal Name

Contacts

James Moore & Co., P.L.

FEIN 59-3204548
{ 5931 NW 1st Place
Gainesville, Florida 32607

Phonz: 352.878.1331
Fax: 352.372.3741

www,jmeco.com

Zach Chalifour, CPA

: Engagement Lead Partner

Zach.Chalifour@jmco.com

Brendan McKitrick, CPA, CISA

*  Engagement Director

Brendan.McKitrick@jmco.com

April 25, 2025




_— e W e W B S el S R W

only refers
to our

Our philosophy is simple: Deliver extrems valus for the fees our clients ray. While choosing an audit firm should
come down to qualifications, capabilities, and commitment, we know cost plays a role as well. And we work hard to
make sure they are absolutely reasonable for the level of service you receive.

Our proposed fees for the audit services are based on the assumption that the accounting records for your
organization will be maintained in good condition and that assistance requested from your personnel will be

provided in both a complete and timely manner.
Our total all-inclusive maximum fees for the engagement include all direct and Indirect costs including all

out-of-pocket expenses.

Fiseal Year End Fee

December 31, 2021 $25,000
December 31, 2022 $26,000
December 31, 2023 $27,000
December 31, 2024 $28,000

How We Bill For Additional Professional Services

Your team will reach out routinely throughout the year to discuss new accounting issues or significant
transactions. Because we value consistent communication, we consider these routine consultations to be
included in the scope of the proposed fees. Additionally, these fees are inclusive of periodic meetings with
your management conducted outside the time encompassed by the proposed audit schedule.

If you would like to engage James Moore for a larger project, we will render a billing for such services at an
&mount or rates agreed upon prior to the beginning of the engagement. Our blended hourly rate for these

services is $195/hour.

' CHIILIAL 0
7. A PROPOSAL TO THE CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE



N

Governimerit Services Team

At the heart of our firm’s practice lies a deep commitment to serving government entities. Our Government Services
Team is fully entrenched in your industry, recognizing that comprehending the challenges you face is the key to
providing effective solutions. These team members specialize in working with government clients and maintain
strong affiliations with prominent industry organizations to stay at the forefront of developments.

With a rich history of providing auditing services to ovar 100 local govarnmeants and relatad organizations

in Florida, James Moore possesses a profound understanding of entities like yours. This extensive experience
enables us to conduct your audit with efficiency and thoroughness, delivering a cost-effective yet comprehensive
engagement. However, we go beyond the role of a mere government auditor; we stand ready to assist you with all

the intricacies of financial reporting and daily challenges.
In addition to our independent auditing services, we offer a range of solutions that include:

» Federal and State Compliance Solutions » Revenue Enhancement Audits

» Financial Condition Assessmenis » Needs Assessments - Financial and IT

» Rate Studies
»  Audit Readiness
» Actuarial Report Interpretations

»  Budget Development/Evaluation
» Internal Control Analyses
» Elected Official Orientation

» Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports » Risk Management Assistance

»  New Accounting Standard Implementation » Lean Six Sigma
Assistance » Fund Balance Planning and Management

» Forensic Auditing »  Agreed-Upon Procedures

» Decision Velidation » Comfort letters in connection with debt securities

» Accounting Consulting Solutions

Two of your engagement leaders, Zach Chalifour and Jameas H alleran, currently serve on the GFOA's ACFR
Review Committee, which reviews ACFRs of governmental entities to determine if an ACFR meets the reporting
requirements necessary to obtain the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

James also has served on the FICPA Local Government Committee for several years and is currently on the FGFOA
Technical Resource Committee. In addition, both he and Zach have taught at several FGFOA Conferences and local
chapter meetings and are frequent speakers throughout the state of Florida.

555 L L,
77 A PROPOSAL TO THE CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE



KENDALL L. DAVIS, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
34 S. WILLIAMS ST
HAZLEHURST, GEORGIA 31539
(912)375-6077

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Walthourville
Walthourville, Georgia

Dear Mayor and Council,

Please see below Engagement Letter for the conduct of your 2021-2024 annual audits. Thank you for the
opportunity to propose on them.
I have been in discussions with Ms. Moss about the availability of the documents to perform these audits and

file them with the Georgia Department of Audits and Accounts. Based on what I know I plan to have these
audits completed by December 31, 2024. This will require much effort on the City’s part to get me everything

that I need in a timely manner.

Based on the aforementioned, it would be my intent to get your 2025 audit filed by the due date of June 30,
2026. After the 2024 is filed then the City will be in compliance with state law. As I am sure you all know,

the City may apply for loans/grants for specific projects to benefit its citizens.

I do have significant experience conducting audits. I actually perform the Cities of Blackshear, Folkston,
Homeland, and Midway among others.

I'will be available for discussions about the progress of each audit at the will of the Mayor and each council
member. For these audits to be completed as we know both parties need to be as transparent as possible for

matters concerning these audits.

If acceptable, please sign the last page and return that page only. Afterwards, I will start requesting documents
to get these done for the City.

Sincerely,

Kendall f. Davis, €F



RULNAFOARIE S Rie APAAY LDy Lo

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
34 S. WILLIAMS ST
HAZLEHURST, GEORGIA 31539
(912)375-6077

AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER

September 10, 2025

City of Walthourville
Walthourville, Georgia

I'am pleased to confirm my understanding of the services that I am to provide for the City of Walthourville for the years

ended December 31, 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024 with the option to extend for four additional vears.

Audit Scope and Objectives

I'will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Walthourville, Georgia (City), as of and for the year ended December
31,2021, 2022, 2023. 2024 with the option to extend for four additional years, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively compromise the City of Walthourville’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. My audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS), will provide an opinion on them in relation to the financial statements as a
whole in a report combined with my auditor’s report on the financial statements.

The objectives of my audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion about
whether the financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), and to report on the fairness of the supplementary
information referred to in the first paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
objective also includes reporting on:

* Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS).

Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major program in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

The GAGAS report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters will include a
paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City ’s internal control
or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with GAGAS in considering
the City ’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance’s report on internal control over compliance will
include a paragraph that states that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements,

2



PR {5 TRAEALLULI, WAl Wl UM HLVLLL LlaudU UL VUL U al© VULSIUCIOU LUELETIEL 1L LDETE 1S @ SsuDbstanual 11Kelinood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the Jjudgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial

statements.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

I will conduct my audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in GAGAS, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a
determination of major program(s) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures I consider necessary
to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS, I exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

I'will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management. I will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including disclosures, and
determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. I will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or
(4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the City or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the City. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, GAGAS does not expect auditors
to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide

reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control combined with the inherent risks of an audit by not performing a
detailed examination of all transactions there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance
may not be detected by me, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS, GAGAS,
and the Uniform Guidance. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws,
regulations, contracts or agreements that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on major
programs. However, I will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial
reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to my attention I will also inform the appropriate level of
management of any violations of laws, regulations, contracts or agreements that come to my attention, unless clearly
inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to my attention, unless clearly inconsequential. I will include
such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. My responsibility as an auditor is limited to the period covered by
my audit and does not extend to any later periods for which I am not engaged as an auditor.

I'have identified the following significant risk(s) of material misstatement as part of my audit planning:

Management override of controls

Equity skimming as defined by the Uniform Guidance (for Cities subject to such restrictions)
Accounting for mortgage refinancing

Adoption of new revenue recognition standards

Other historically noted financial statement issues

If, as a result of my planning procedures, I identify additional risks not mentioned here, they may be communicated in a
separate communication.

I'will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City ’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

My procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of

the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by
correspondence with selected customers, creditors and financial institutions. I will also request written representations

from your attorney as part of the engagement.
[ may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your account. I
nay share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the

3



STTTS iy & ALILLLUGHAL LUV PVLIVIMVD, LUGWULLGD, Gl DALTEUALUD LW

protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, I will secure confidentiality agreements with all
service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and I will take reasonable precautions to determine
that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to
others. In the event that I am unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your
consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, I will
remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.

Audit Procedures — Internal Control

I will obtain an understanding of the City and its environment, including internal control relevant to the audit, sufficient to
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override
of internal control. Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that I consider relevant
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. My tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal
control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in my report on internal control issued pursuant to GAGAS.

As required by the Uniform Guidance, I will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the effectiveness of the
design and operation of controls that I consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with
compliance requirements applicable to each major Federal program. However, my tests will be less in scope than would
be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in my report on
internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control.
Accordingly, I will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, I will communicate to you and those charged with
governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under professional standards, GAGAS,

and the Uniform Guidance.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, I will
perform tests of the City of Walthourville’s compliance with provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and
agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on
overall compliance, and I will not express such an opinion in my report on compliance issued pursuant to GAGAS.

The Uniform Guidance requires that I also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
City has complied with Federal statutes, laws and regulations, provisions of contracts and grant agreements and conditions
of Federal awards applicable to major programs. My procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable
procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements applicable that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the City s major programs. For Federal programs that are included in the
Compliance Supplement, my compliance and internal control procedures will relate to the compliance procedures that the
Compliance Supplement identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion
on City of Walthourville’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in my report on
compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Other Services

Non-Audit Services
As part of my engagement, and in order to complete the audited financial statements in a timely manner, you have

requested that I assist you with a variety of non-audit services. Under professional standards these services may increase
my risk of independence. In order to reduce any independence risk that may exist to an acceptable level, you will be
required to take responsibility for those services. Further, you will be required to assign personnel with suitable skills,

4



AN LML Y AMMD PIV VANV LY VLD UL LLIAL SUVLL dIT dLVOLAUIT alu dppPIiopridie.

A m - g T mea meamaa—— v ot aw

Services to be provided will include the following:

1. You will provide adjusted (close-out) financial statements for the audit report in addition information
for preparation of the notes to the financial statements and supplementary data in accordance with
GAAP. I will use the City’s adjusted financial statements to begin my audit. I will suggest any other

adjustments that need to be made.

These non-audit services do not constitute an audit under GAGAS, and such services will not be conducted in accordance
with GAGAS.

I will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The other services are limited to the financial statements, supplementary information, and
related notes previously defined. I, in my sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure
or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

My audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the
selection and application of accounting principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in conformity with GAAP. You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records and
related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information, (including information from
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information
of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other
information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (2) additional information that we may request
for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of my audit, I will require certain written representations from you about the

financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to me in
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by me during the
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to

the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing me about all known or suspected fraud affecting the City involving (1) management, (2) employees who have
significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
City received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the City complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements
and grants. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor
noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when
instances of noncompliance are identified, including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and
take corrective action on reported audit findings; and prepare a schedule of the status of prior audit findings, questioned
costs, and recommendations and a corrective action plan. The schedule of the status of prior audit findings, questioned

costs, and recommendations should be available for my review.

You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, all
financial records, and related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information
(including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with
(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and
transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other

5



i Frs = DT TTTTUUTT TS STITIAS SmASoa Saan SLALLULSEE S WALLLUMYG (o ) GLAULLIVEILCH LULVLUEGLLUVLL LLIEL VY L LAY 1wy Ut
for the purpose of the audit; and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of my audit, I will require certain written representations from you about the
financial statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and related matters.

You are responsible for identifying all Federal awards received and understanding and complying with the compliance
requirements, and for the preparation schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, including related notes, the
supplementary information in conformity with GAAS. You agree to include my report on the supplementary information
in any document that contains, and indicates that I have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to
include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes my report
thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available for users of the supplementary information no later
than the date the supplementary information is issued with my report thereon. Your responsibilities include
acknowledging to us in the management representation letter that:

1 you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP

2. you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with

GAAP
the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have

changed, the reasons for such changes); and
4. you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or

presentation of the supplementary information.

3

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and
recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing copies of previous financial audits, and
any other audits, attestations, studies, or reviews directly related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to me corrective actions taken to address significant findings
and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestations, studies, or reviews, and reporting findings and the current
status of such findings in the schedule of the status of prior audit findings, questioned costs and recommendations, in
accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. You are also responsible for providing management’s views
on my current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and

for the timing and format for providing that information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the nonattest services I provide; oversee the services by
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the

adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement administration, fees, and other

I understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other confirmations we request and will
locate any documents selected by us for testing. A list of information I expect to need for my audit will be sent to you.

Please have this information available for us on the scheduled audit date.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Kendall L. Davis, P.C. and constitutes confidential
information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be
made available upon request and in a timely manner to approved interested parties only for purposes of a quality review of
the andit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. I will notify you of any such request. If
requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Kendall L. Davis, P.C.

personnel. Furthermore, upon request, I may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned

parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including

other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of six years after the report release date
period.

Kendall L. Davis, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the
reports or authorizing another individual to sign it. I will complete my audit and issue my reports in a timely manner to

6



The fee for the audit will be $ 20,000 per year. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel
and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If significant
additional time is necessary, I will keep you informed of any problems I encounter and my fees will be adjusted
accordingly. My invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable upon
presentation. Work may be suspended if your account becomes 120 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until
your account is paid in full. If T elect to terminate my services for nonpayment, my engagement will be deemed to have
been completed upon written notification of termination, even if I have not completed my report. You will be obligated to
compensate me for all time expended and to reimburse me for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of

termination.

I affirm that I or members of my organization have not been suspended or debarred from performing
government audits, or other government activity.

I certify that I nor members of my firm do not and will not discriminate as to race, sex, religion, color, age,
creed or national origin in regard to obligation, work, and services to be performed under the terms of any

contract ensuing from this proposal.

Government Auditing Standards require that I provided you with a copy of my most recent external peer review
report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received

during the period of the contract. My peer review report is included.

Reporting
I will issue written reports upon completion of my audit. My reports will be addressed to the City of Walthourville.

Circumstances may arise in which my report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of my
audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for me to modify my opinion, add a separate
section, or add an emphasis- of-matter or other-matter paragraph to my auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from
this engagement. If my opinions are other than unmodified, I will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any
reason, [ am unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, I may decline to express

opinions or issue reports, or I may withdraw from this engagement.

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City ’s internal control
or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City ’s internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control

over compliance (if applicable) will state that the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to
describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements

of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.

I appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of
my engagement. If you have any questions, please let me know. If you agree with the terms of my engagement as

described in this letter, please sign below and return it to me.
Sincerely,
%eucfal[of aDavB, CPA

Kendall L. Davis, P.C.
Certified Public Accountant



Client Response

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Walthourville.

Management signature:

Title: City Clerk

Date:

Governance signature:

Title: Mayor

Date:




Kendall Lewis Davis

- CERYIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
R ticensa Type.
" CPA012304 ACTIVE
License Number License Statys
01/0172024 : 12/31/2025
License ERective Date . License Expiration Date

Kendall L. Davis PC
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

License Type

ACF004157 ACTIVE

License Number license Status

0710172024 06/30/2026
License Effective Date License Expiration Date

REESSEEEIEBUEESSS s e



T April 25, 2024

Kendall Davis

Kendall L. Davis , P. C.

. 34 8 William St

. Hazlehurst, GA 31539-6108

. * DéaF Kendall Davis; -

administering entity.
© ;" As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committes asked me to convey its
- - congratulations to the firm. : :

. Th_an_ﬁk yExu for your cooperation.

: Sinéereiy,

Jessica Mytrohovich
CFO . o
jmytrohovich@gscpa.org
.. 404-504-2098 -

g - ccRandy Dummer

' Firm Number: - 900010117986 - Review Number: 604535

5 Eoncourse Parkwiay, Sulte 800 | Atlants, GA 30328 | 404-231-8676 | 800-330-8855 | Fax 404-237-1291 | Wi, gscpa.org



